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Moravian Gallery in Brno

Governor’s Palace, Moravské nám. 1a, Brno
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opening 23rd June 2011 at 17.00
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What would a National Gallery be like in Moravia? What items would it hold in its collections and what themes would it be concerned with? Visitors can find out about this in the Governor’s Palace where from 24th June to 30th October we open the National Gallery of Moravia! 


Or rather an exhibition invoking the existence of an imaginary institution which the Moravian Gallery would have naturally become had Moravia remained a self-governing land, thus assuming the role of a “national” or “land” institution. Through the imposing 253 exhibits (paintings, sculptures, drawings, prints, glass, tapestries, furniture, textile, ceramics…..), representing a cross-section of virtually all the departments of the Moravian Gallery in Brno, visitors will learn about the history of the institution and see various pictures from Moravian history and culture. 

It is also thanks to the National Gallery of Moravia that the famous monumental work by Joža Uprka The Ride of Kings will again be on show in Brno after many years, which is on long-term loan in the Gallery of Fine Art in Hodonín where it will return after the end of the exhibition. After a long time people will also be able to behold the Portrait of Prince Eugene of Savoy by the highly appreciated Baroque portraitist, Jan Kupecký, which is otherwise kept in the repository due to its dimensions. Exhibition visitors will also be able to see, for example, the portrait of Christian Karl André — one of the leading protagonists from Moravia’s scientific circles from the first half of the 19th century and a man whose name was given to a new variety of vine cultivated in 1961 (i.e. the year when the MG was established).

The unusual exhibition which came to being on the occasion of this year’s fiftieth anniversary of the birth of the Moravian Gallery in Brno will raise visitors’ awareness regarding two principal subjects. The first part of the exhibition will take visitors to the very beginnings and predecessors of today’s MG — the development of the art collections of the Francis Museum in Brno from its inception in 1817 roughly to the end of the 19th century and the collections of the Museum of Applied Arts in Brno from its foundation in 1873. A time axis will show the most important historical events of the two institutions that laid down the foundations of the present Moravian Gallery in Brno. The second part of the National Gallery of Moravia illustrates the different phases in the search for a Moravian identity from the 18th to roughly the mid-20th century, and is divided into several thematic sections: A History of Moravia in Pictures, German Artists in Moravia and Silesia, Moravian Landscape in Art, Scenes from the Life of the Moravian People, Brno as the Centre of Modern Art. 
THE NATIONAL GALLERY OF MORAVIA
The richness of its art collections and wide-ranging activities make the Moravian Gallery in Brno the most important art museum within the territory of historical Moravia. By connecting to its roots in the collection of the Brno Francis Museum built up from 1817, it also holds the position as the first continually developing public art collection in Moravia. The title of the exhibition perhaps a little provocatively invokes the existence of an imaginary institution, but it also has the name of the real Moravian Gallery embedded within. This link is intentional, aiming to highlight the relativity and historical determination of the current status. Although the political and cultural development in Moravia was clearly heading, at least from 1848, towards the forming of a union with Bohemia, it cannot be completely ruled out that under a different political and power constellation the historical continuity of the mutual links could have been, on the contrary, eroded, with a resulting greater autonomy for the individual lands of the Czech Crown. Had Moravia not lost its self-governing status in modern times, the Moravian Gallery would have then naturally assumed the position of a “land” or even “national” institution“.

The exhibition project came into being on the 50th anniversary of the establishment of the Moravian Gallery in Brno. It provides an insight into the gallery’s acquisition of collections before it was officially established, revealing to us its “prehistory” or “protohistory”. The Moravian Gallery was formed in 1961 by merging the picture gallery of the Moravian Museum — until 1900 called the Francis Museum — and the Museum of Applied Arts in Brno. It was the intention of the project team not to restrict itself merely to producing a commented overview of the history of the collections, but to devote the exhibition to the circumstances of the origin and growth of the art collections of the two merged museums during the 19th and partly in the 20th century, and also to briefly illustrate the different phases of the search for a Moravian identity in the period from the 18th to roughly the mid-20th century. The exhibition thus touches on subjects that in our opinion a real “National Gallery of Moravia” could or even should have charted, such as the art topography of Moravia and its history, mythology, religion, nationalities and folklore.

THEMES OF THE EXHIBITION

The exhibition consists of two parts, which are further subdivided into several sections. The first part is dedicated to the history and growth of the art collections of the institution that constitute the backbone of the collections of the Moravian Gallery in Brno. 

It commences by outlining the development of the Francis Museum in Brno  from its inception in 1817 roughly until the time when in 1900 it was placed under the name Moravian Museum into the administration of the Margravate of Moravia. The selection of exhibits aims to present some individuals and events connected with the origin and the working of the Francis Museum and its art collections in the initial period of its existence, and simultaneously indicate the variety of genres and quality standards of the first permanent exhibitions in the rooms of the Bishop’s Court in Brno. From the items on display we would like to draw attention to the monumental Portrait of Prince Eugene of Savoy (1715) from the exquisite Baroque portraitist, Jan Kupecký, which due to its enormous dimensions is otherwise kept in the repository and the public can see it for the first time in many years. Alongside non-commissioned art, paintings and sculptures, a number of items of applied art as well as souvenirs where the memorial function was predominant found their way to the museum collections. This was, for example, the case of the marble Sarcophagus from the workshop of the Italian neo-classicist sculptor Pompeo Marchesi (about 1835-1837), which served to hold the down feathers from a pillow from the deathbed of the patron of the Brno museum, the Austrian Emperor Francis I. A separate section deals with the beginnings of the Moravian Industrial Museum in Brno. The principal impetus for its foundation in 1873 was provided by the World Exhibition in Vienna held in the same year, which also became the source of a great many acquisitions for the collections of the newly established museum. The exhibition shows a selection from the first exhibits as well as some valuable gifts and acquisitions alongside typical collection items such as pattern books, technological rarities or typical products illustrating the original prevalently technological orientation of the museum and its further development. Special attention should be paid to the ornate Renaissance wedding chest, the so-called cassone (1490-1510) donated to the collections of the industrial museum in 1894 by the important patron Count Johann II of Liechtenstein, where the themes of the painterly decoration have been identified (Roman ancient legend of Marcus Curtius), and the artist has been attributed (Michele da Verona).

The second part of the exhibition is subdivided into five sections concerned with some specific subjects linked to the development of culture and art in Moravia in the period roughly from the 18th to the first half of the 20th century. The first section called A History of Moravia in Pictures presents the different ways in which the history of the Moravian land and, in part, its mythology were reflected by visual art. The selection includes items that directly represent historical events or persons connected with Moravia, or use an allegorical vocabulary to illustrate some aspect of Moravian identity. One of the most interesting exhibits is the newly restored votive painting with the iconographically rare scene of The Dream of Margrave Vladislav Jindřich (around 1750), which arrived into the collections in the second half of the 19th century from the chapel at Znojmo Castle. The representative selection also encompasses the remarkable set of 115 Indian-ink drawings A History of Moravia (1824-1827), created by the self-taught Moravian painter František Richter. The exhibition further documents two of the probably most important sculptural projects in Moravia in the first half of the 19th century - the erection of the memorial-obelisk to commemorate the end of the Napoleonic wars in Brno at Františkov (today Denisovy sady; 1818) and the rebuilding of the monument marking the ploughing of Joseph II in Slavíkovice (1835-1836). The next section briefly provides information on German Artists in Moravia and Silesia, i.e. German speaking Moravians and their contribution to the world of art in the country before the abrupt end to the co-existence of the Slav and German population in 1945. A rarity in this section is the presentation of the painting by Hans Tichý Pieta (1888), which lost is left half during a fire in the museum in 1929 and is exhibited with at least a suggested reconstruction of the original whole. The following section dedicated to Art Topography in Moravia will be a treat for all lovers of landscape painting and old topographic views of various places in Moravia and Silesia. The selection aims to show the different approaches to depicting specific landscape areas over a period of roughly one hundred years (biedermeier, secession, late impressionism, realism), and presents different geographical areas of Moravia with an emphasis on paintings capturing some important or lesser known historical heritage monuments (Šimon Tadeáš Milián, Lili Gödl-Brandhuber, Roman Havelka). Within the most extensive section Scenes from the Life of the Moravian People the selection of works from the collections of the Moravian Gallery in Brno presents the different aspects of rendering the everyday life of the population in the countryside in visual art and outlines the evolution of the approach by different artists to the subject. The highlight of the whole exhibition is the monumental painting The Ride of Kings (1897) by the painter-chronicler of Moravian Slovakia, Joža Uprka, who was born 150 years ago this year. Apart from exhibits of non-commissioned art the selection includes examples from graphic design (posters by Alphonse Mucha, Antoš Frolka, etc.), decorative art (textile, ceramics) and interior design (furniture by Dušan Jurkovič). The final section, with examples of work from a number of artists connected with interwar and post-war Brno contemplates the question to what extent is it universal or local modernism? Works by such artist as Antonín Procházka, Josef Šíma, František Foltýn, Vincenc Makovský, Bohumír Matal, etc. represent some local varieties of the modernist artistic approach, demonstrating that the contrast between international and national (or left vs. right) is largely artificial. The carefully selected exhibits consist mainly of works on paper which cannot be permanently displayed. In this way the exhibition complements the picture of modern interwar output that the visitor can absorb from permanent exhibitions in the Moravian Gallery in Brno and other institutions.

Petr Tomášek

concept author and exhibition curator 


”One of the principal tasks of an art museum is to search for different perspectives of understanding both the individual works of art and their origin, and the context in which they are today kept and presented to the public. The exhibition entitled “The National Gallery of Moravia - 194 years since its foundation” primarily reflects on the problem of the historical, ideological, and aesthetic relationships of the set of works of art held in our collections which share the underlying issue of the existence of a specific region and its geographical, national and mental characteristics. The project is part of the events marking the fiftieth anniversary of the establishment of today’s Moravian Gallery in Brno, and by looking back at its roots in the 19th century aims, on the one hand, to highlight its rich “prehistory” and, on the other, to state that today — probably more than ever before — we recognise a multitude of historically given views concerning the function of art and its institutions. At the same time, after a long period the exhibition rehabilitates and provides access to a number of well-known works of art which were criticised in the past by internationally oriented modernists as manifestations of poor taste and long abandoned nationalism or local patriotism.”

Marek Pokorný

director of the Moravian Gallery in Brno

ACCOMPANYING PROGRAMME IN AUGUST

Wednesday 24/8/2011 17 h

Guided tour / Petr Tomášek, exhibition curator

Free with admission ticket

EXHIBITION PARTNERS
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CONTACT FOR MEDIA 

Martina Vašková, marketing and communication department, +420 724 516 672, +420 532 169 174

tisk@moravska-galerie.cz
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5 budov, 1 galerie.

Pražákův palác Uměleckoprůmyslové muzeum Místodržitelský palác Jurkovičova vila Rodný dům Josefa Hoffmanna
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